
 
METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA  
April 10, 2019, 10:00 a.m. 

 
1. Call to Order – Board Chair, Commissioner Fran Miron 
 
2. Approval of Agenda – Commissioner Miron 
 
3.  Approval of February 13, 2019 Executive Committee Minutes (page 3) 
 
4. Radio Items – Tracey Fredrick, Radio Services Coordinator 

A.  Approval of Amendments to Metro Standards (page 7) 
  i.  Standard 1.5.3 – Waivers and Variances (page 8) 
  ii. Standard 6.5.0 – Prioritizing Capital Spending (page 11) 
 B.  Approval of ARMER Lease with Pointe Condominiums (page 15) 
  
5.   9-1-1 Items – Pete Eggimann, Director of 9-1-1 Services – None 
  
6. EMS Items – Ron Robinson, EMS Coordinator 
 A. Update – EMSRB FY2020-2021 Regional Grant Process (page 27) 
 
7. Administrative Items – Jill Rohret, Executive Director 
 A.  Discussion – 2020 MESB Budget (page 29) 
  i.  Amount of Merit Increase for Salaries 
  ii. Unspent Prior Year Budget Funds 
   
8. Old Business – None  
 
9. New Business – None 
 
10. Adjourn 
  



METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA  

April 10, 2019, 10:00 a.m. 

Metropolitan Emergency Services Board Members 

Anoka County 
Commissioner Julie Braastad 
Commissioner Rhonda Sivarajah* 

Carver County 
Commissioner Gayle Degler 
Commissioner Jim Ische* 

Chisago County 
Commissioner George McMahon* 

City of Minneapolis 
Council Member Andrew Johnson* 

Dakota County 
Commissioner Tom Egan* (2019 Secretary) 
Commissioner Mary Liz Holberg 

Hennepin County 
Commissioner Irene Fernando* (2019 Treasurer) 
Commissioner Jeff Johnson 

Isanti County 
Commissioner Greg Anderson* 

Ramsey County 
Commissioner Blake Huffman* (2019 Vice Chair) 
Commissioner Trista MatasCastillo 

Scott County 
Commissioner Dave Beer 
Commissioner Tom Wolf* 

Sherburne County 
Commissioner Felix Schmiesing* 

Washington County 
Commissioner Wayne Johnson 
Commissioner Fran Miron* (2019 Chair) 

*Denotes Executive Committee member

2



METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
February 13, 2019 

Commissioners Present: 
Greg Anderson, Isanti County 
Barbara Burandt, Sherburne County alternate 
Tom Egan, Dakota County 
Irene Fernando, Hennepin County 
Blake Huffman, Ramsey County 
Jim Ische, Carver County-absent 

Andrew Johnson, City of Minneapolis-absent 
George McMahon, Chisago County 
Fran Miron, Washington County 
Felix Schmiesing-absent 
Rhonda Sivarajah, Anoka County 
Tom Wolf, Scott County 

Staff Present:  Jill Rohret; Pete Eggimann; Tracey Fredrick; Kelli Jackson; and Martha Ziese. 

Others Present: Jay Arneson, MESB Board Counsel; and Ray Kennedy, Dakota County Employee 
Relations. 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was called to order at 10:00 a.m. by MESB Vice-Chair, Commissioner Blake Huffman.

2. Approval of February 13, 2019 Agenda
Motion by Commissioner McMahon, seconded by Commissioner Egan to approve the February 13,
2019 Executive Committee agenda. Motion carried.

3. Approval of December 12, 2018 Executive Committee Minutes
Motion by Commissioner Anderson, seconded by Commissioner Sivarajah to accept the December
12, 2018 Executive Committee minutes. Motion carried.

4. Oath of Office
Commissioner Huffman administered the oath of office to Commissioners Rhonda Sivarajah, Anoka
County and Barbara Burandt, the appointed alternate for Sherburne County.

5. Radio Items
A. Approval of ARMER Lease with Metropolitan Airports Commission
Tracey Fredrick said the MESB staff recommends the Executive Committee recommend approval of
the lease with the Metropolitan Airport Commission for the ARMR site at the airport. The MESB
entered into a lease agreement with the Metropolitan Airports Commission for an ARMER tower site
at the MSP airport in February 2006. The term of this lease was ten years with no monthly rent cost. It
did not include an option to renew with the same terms after the lease expired.

The MESB and the Metropolitan Airports Commission have to come to terms on a new lease 
agreement. This new agreement will be a month-to-month term on the same space, with no monthly 
rent. The MESB will continue to pay the monthly electric consumption at the MAC site. 

Commissioner McMahon asked why the lease went to a month-to-month lease. Rohret said month-to-
month is easier to administer a month-to-month lease. 

Motion made by Commissioner Huffman seconded by Commissioner Egan to approve the ARMER 
lease with Metropolitan Airports Commission. Motion carried. 

B. Approval of ARMER Lease Amendment with City of St. Paul Park
Fredrick said MESB staff recommends the Executive Committee recommend approval of the lease
amendment with the City of St. Paul Park for the St. Paul Park City Hall ARMER site to continue
through March 31, 2029.

3



METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD 
 

 

 
The original agreement included the right for one option to renew the lease for an additional ten 
years. The MESB executed that renewal option in April 2009.  The lease renewal ends on March 31, 
2019. 
 
MESB staff and counsel worked with the City of St. Paul Park on the terms of the lease amendment.  
The term of the proposed amendment is an additional ten years, and follows the same terms and 
conditions are the original lease.  The lease amendment will take effect on April 1, 2019. 
 
Commissioner Sivarajah said the cost would be significantly more because each year the  
$600.00 is added on top of the original $600.00. Rohret said the action sheet for the Board meeting 
will be amended to reflect that cost. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner McMahon, seconded by Commissioner Anderson to approve the 
ARMER lease amendment with the City of St. Paul Park. Motion carried. 
 
C.  Approval of ARMER Lease Amendment with Mobile Radio Engineering 
Fredrick said staff recommends the Executive Committee recommend approval of the lease 
amendment with the Mobile Radio Engineering, Inc. for the Basswood Grove ARMER site to continue 
through March 31, 2029. 
 
The Metropolitan Radio Board entered into a sublease agreement with Mobile Radio Engineering, 
Inc. for an ARMER tower site on the Denmark Township, Washington County in April 1999. The term 
of this lease was ten years with an option to renew for an additional ten years, which was exercised in 
2009.  The lease renewal ends on March 31, 2019. 
 
The lease requires a four percent annual rental increase in rent on April 1. The rental fee is borne by 
those agencies which own equipment at the site, MnDOT and Washington County. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner McMahon, seconded by Commissioner Sivarajah to approve the 
ARMER lease amendment with Mobile Radio Engineering. Motion carried. 
 
D.  Approval of Amendment to Hennepin County ARMER Participation Plan 
Fredrick said the Radio TOC recommends approval of the amendment to the Hennepin County 
Participation Plan. 
 
In 2014, Hennepin County moved the PSAP and Sheriff’s Office staff to a new building in Plymouth. 
The back-up location remained at the old location in Golden Valley. 
 
Hennepin County is requesting an amendment to its ARMER participation plan to move its back-up 
PSAP location from Golden Valley to the County’s public safety facility in downtown Minneapolis.  
 
As part of this relocation, the County requests that this back-up facility move from Zone 2 master site 
to the Zone 1 master site.  This will provide greater redundancy in the event of a catastrophic event. 
 
MnDOT has reviewed the request and had no issues with it. The SECB approved this amendment 
yesterday. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Egan, seconded by Commissioner Huffman to approve the 
amendment to Hennepin County’s ARMER participation plan. Motion carried. 
 
6. 9-1-1 Items  
A. Approval of NG9-1-1 Transition 2019 – 2020 Strategic Plan 

4



METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD 
 

 

Pete Eggimann said transitioning from the Enhanced 9-1-1 (E9-1-1) analog system to a digital Next 
Generation (NG9-1-1) system is underway. The MESB has been actively engaged for several years in 
transitioning the metro area 9-1-1 system from the analog system, which has served the metro area since 
1982, toward a standards-compliant digital Next Generation 9-1-1 system. The new system is designed to 
meet the needs of the mobile public. The 2019-2020 Strategic Plan documents the progress that has been 
made during the transition, as well the focus of MESB staff for 2019 - 2020. 
 
The highest priority in the transition plan is to find out how to move to caller location-based wireless call 
delivery. Wireless calls are delivered now by the closest tower to pick up the call, which requires a lot of 
maintenance and review for MESB staff.  Each time a wireless carrier makes a change to its network, or 
adds or changes the direction of an antenna, the change must be reviewed. Location-based routing will 
eliminate this need to constantly review the networks. 
 
Another priority is to enhance the ESInet to the PSAPs which will allow the use of shared, cloud-based 
applications. The current network is restricted to 9-1-1 traffic only.  
 
The regional GIS 9-1-1 data synchronization project will be completed by late 2019 or early 2020. 
 
Last summer, the MESB approved a pilot project to prove the design of a standards-based ESInet. The 
August 1, 2018 outage triggered some reaction within ECN, and it was agreed that an RFP was needed for 
network services. The pilot project was put on hold while the RFP process is conducted. 
 
Eggimann stated that in the future, changes will made so that the 9-1-1 system complies with the NENA i3 
architecture, changes will be made to how calls are routed, and data protocols will be implemented. He 
noted multimedia support within 9-1-1 is down the road. These features would allow the sending of images 
and videos while talking to a 9-1-1 dispatcher. 
 
Eggimann said that decent progress is being made on the transition to NG9-1-1.  A trend that is expected 
to continue is the sharing of applications between PSAPs. The 9-1-1 system continues to evolve, and as a 
result may require some additional funding. 
 
Commissioner Fernando said Minnesota is unique in that there are some counties and cities that have very 
different needs. Fernando commended the work being done by the MESB and that Minnesota is on the 
leading edge of the NG9-1-1 transition. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Fernando, seconded by Commissioner McMahon to approve NG9-1-1 
transition 2019-2020 Strategic Plan. Motion carried. 
 
7. EMS Items — None 
 
8. Administrative Items 
A.  Approval of Amendments to MESB Bylaws 
Jill Rohret said staff is suggesting three amendments to the MESB bylaws. In Article 1, Section 1, 
Sherburne County is being added as a MESB member. The second change is language added In 
Article II, Section 3, stating mileage reimbursements are allowed where permitted by law and in 
accordance with City/County policy. The third amendment is in Article III, Section 5, where language 
associated with the Treasurer’s duties was updated to reflect current practices. Additionally, a minor 
change was made in Article II, Section 3 that strikes out the word checks, as the MESB no longer 
issues checks. Reference to the Finance committee was also struck, as it is no longer an MESB 
committee. 
 
She reminded members that 15 days’ notice is required to change bylaws and it must pass by two-
thirds of the full board.  

5



METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD 
 

 

 
Motion made by Commissioner Huffman, seconded by Commissioner Egan to approve amendments 
to MESB Bylaws. Motion carried. 
 
B.  Approval of Amendments to MESB Policy 030 – Purchasing 
Rohret reminded members that they reviewed amendments to this policy at the December 2018 
Executive Committee meeting and at the January 2019 Board meeting.  As a result of the discussion 
at the January 2019 MESB meeting, an additional amendment was made.  The new language is: 
When the micro-purchase threshold is adjusted, staff will notify the Board of the change.  The MESB 
will follow the Uniform Guidance micro-purchase threshold unless the Board passes a resolution 
approving a different threshold amount. 
 
MESB counsel reviewed the policy and had no objections. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Egan, seconded by Commissioner Wolf to approve amendments to 
MESB Policy 030-Purchasing. Motion carried. 
 
C.  Approval of Executive Director Travel Request – APCO/MTUG 2019 
Rohret requested approval to travel to the national APCO and MTUG conferences in Baltimore, MD in 
August 2019. Both conferences were in the approved budget. 
 
Motion made by Commissioner Sivarajah, seconded by Commissioner Wolf to approve the Executive 
Director’s travel request to attend 2019APCO/MTUG conferences. Motion carried. 
 
9. Old Business – None 
 
10. New Business 
A.  Executive Director Performance Review Process and Draft MESB Policy 032 – Executive 
Director Performance Review 
Rohret said that this policy simplifies the Executive Director performance review process. She introduced 
Ray Kennedy, Compensation Administrator for Dakota County Employee Relations. 
 
Ray Kennedy stated that the policy is designed to withstand any changes made to the Executive Director’s 
position. There are two instances that Executive Committee is asked to clarify before the request goes 
before the full board. A self-review is to be done and sent to the board chair. A common review date will be 
used.  
 
Motion made by Commissioner McMahon, seconded by Commissioner Anderson to approve the Executive 
Director’s performance review process/Draft/MESB Policy 032.  
 
Commissioner Fernando suggested a friendly amendment to cc the Vice-Chair to make it easier to prepare 
for the following year’s Executive Director’s review. The amended motion carried. 
 
B.  Discussion of Dakota County Merit Compensation Plan 
Kennedy explained the Dakota County Merit Compensation plan. 
 
Commissioner Fernando asked if the plan was designed to stay in line with market adjustments. Kennedy 
confirmed that to be the case. 
 
11. Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned at 10:43 a.m. 

6



 
METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD 

 
Meeting Date:  April 10, 2019 
Agenda Item: 4A. Approval of Amendments to                     

Metro Radio Standards 
Presenter:  Fredrick 
  

MOTION BY: 
SECONDED BY: 
MOTION: 
 
PASS/FAIL  
 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Radio TOC recommends the Executive Committee recommend approval of changes to 
Metro Radio Standards 1.5.3 and 6.5.0. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Metropolitan Emergency Services Board has established 43 standards for operating the 
ARMER system in the Metro Region. These standards range from how utilities are billed to how 
to request changes on the system. Several standards were updated after the merger of the 9-1-1 
and Radio Boards and the creation of the MESB but have not had language or content changes 
for over ten years. 
 
 
ISSUES & CONCERNS 
Three Metro Radio Standards have been reviewed for content and language to be recommended 
for approval by the Executive Committee. 
 
The first is Standard 1.5.3 – Variances & Waivers. Changes include updating the revision date, 
adding language to clarify that each variance & waiver request will be reviewed by the Radio 
TOC prior to being reviewed at the SECB. Review by the Radio TOC will ensure that variance 
and waiver requests don’t create undue burdens on the region. Lastly, inclusive language for 
designation of authority is being added. 
 
Standard 6.5.0 – Prioritizing Capital Spending was reviewed with no changes to language, only 
updating the review date to February 11, 2019. 
 
All standards will be made ADA compliant at the end of the review period. Only content and 
language changes are being requested at this time. 
 
The Radio TOC has reviewed the three standards and has approved the changes outlined. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
None to MESB. 

7



FINAL  FINAL 
 

METRO 1.5.3—Variances & Waivers 1 METRO 1.5.3 

METRO REGION 
800 MHz Trunked Regional Public Safety Radio System 

Standards, Protocols, Procedures 
 
Document Section: 1 – Management of System Radio TOC Recommendation 
Sub-Section: METRO 1.5.3  Date: 5/24/01 
Procedure Title: Variances & Waivers  
Date Established: 3/19/01 MESB Approval - Signature: 
Replaces Document Dated: 5/19/01  
Date Revised: 5/24/01 3/27/19 Date: 06/01/01 
 
1.  Purpose or Objective 
The purpose of this section is to set forth the process by which variances or waivers to these 
standards, protocols and procedures will be granted to a requesting agency. 
 Variance is defined as an allowed divergence from full adherence to an adopted standard, 

protocol or procedure. 
 Waiver is defined as a complete release from an adopted standard, protocol or procedure. 
 
2.  Technical Background: 
 Capabilities N/A 
 Constraints N/A 
 
3.  Operational Context: 
The Metropolitan Emergency Services Board (MESB) is charged with setting standards and 
determining protocols and procedures for the smoothest possible operations between and 
among the users of the shared region-wide 800 MHz digital trunked public safety radio 
system.  
 
The users fall into two groups:   
 Full participants in the shared infrastructure  
 Conventional users who will have access to the regional system by utilizing 

interoperability equipment that has been designed into the system.   
 
The ability to communicate between these two groups is possible due to the 
interoperational hardware and software installed on the region-wide system.  The 
improper use of this equipment can have minor to grave consequences.  These standards, 
policies and procedures have been set forth by teams consisting of radio users and 
managers from both groups so as to maximize service to the citizens of the metropolitan 
area and minimize potential negative consequences.  Therefore, variances and waivers 
must not compromise the integrity of the Regional Public Safety system or any of its 
participants. 
 
4.  Recommended Protocol/ Standard: 

8





































 

26









 
METROPOLITAN EMERGENCY SERVICES BOARD 

 
Meeting Date:  April 10, 2019 
Agenda Item:  7A.  Discussion – 2020 Operational 

Budget 
Presenter:  Rohret 
  

MOTION BY: 
SECONDED BY: 
MOTION: 
 
PASS/FAIL  
 

The second item for discussion is how to handle any unspent operational budget funds.  As has 
been discussed, MESB staff has made many efforts since the 2016 operational budget to bring 
the budget into alignment with actual expenditures and has reduced the overall operational 
budget every year since 2016.  However, due to staffing changes and unrealized expected 
expenditures sometimes means that the MESB does not fully expend its operational budget.  
Because MESB members are invoiced at the beginning of each year based on the budget, 
unspent budget funds results in what could be considered an over-payment by MESB members.  
Staff seeks input from the Executive Committee on how to handle these funds. 
 
Staff has developed a few options for handling these funds.  The first option is for the MESB to 
retain the unspent budget funds and transfer them to the Hennepin County Investment Fund so 
that additional funds may be available in the future for capital projects done on behalf of MESB 
members.  Currently, the only way for the Hennepin County Investment Fund grows is due to 
interest received. 
 
The second option is to keep the unspent operational budget funds and use them to reduce 
future year assessments to MESB members.  For instance, unspent 2018 operational budget 
funds could be used to reduce 2020 assessments.  If the Executive Committee prefers this 
option, it should consider whether or not to use all of the unspent operational budget funds to 
reduce assessments or a just a portion (and what is the percentage).  The answer to this may 
depend on how much is available. 
 
The third option would be to refund MESB members based on the amount of unspent operational 
budget funds and the population formula used to determine assessments. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 
See issues discussed in Issues and Concerns. 

31


	ADP7BC1.tmp
	METRO REGION
	800 MHz Trunked Regional Public Safety Radio System
	Standards,  Protocols,  Procedures

	ADPC051.tmp
	METRO REGION
	800 MHz Trunked Regional Public Safety Radio System
	Standards, Protocols, Procedures
	The purpose of this section is to set forth the process by which variances or waivers to these standards, protocols and procedures will be granted to a requesting agency.
	 Variance is defined as an allowed divergence from full adherence to an adopted standard, protocol or procedure.
	 Waiver is defined as a complete release from an adopted standard, protocol or procedure.

	ADP5959.tmp
	EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE Meeting Minutes
	EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE Meeting Minutes
	February 13, 2019
	February 13, 2019




